
 11333 N. Cedarburg Road 
 Mequon, WI 53092-1930 
 Phone: 262/236-2914 
 Fax: 262/242-9655 
www.ci.mequon.wi.us  Office of the City Administrator 

 
PUBLIC WELFARE COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
May 12, 2015 

 
PRESENT:  Aldermen Gierl, Mayr, Strzelczyk 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Alderman Adams (6:04 pm), City Administrator Jones, Assistant City Administrator 

Thyes, Police Chief Graff, Executive Assistant Prosser, Interested Parties, Press   
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Mayr at 5:30 PM   
 
Elect Committee Chairperson 
Chairman Mayr opened the floor for nominations of committee chair.   
 
Action:  Motion to nominate Alderman Dale Mayr as Committee Chair (Gierl/Strzelczyk)   
Result:   Motion passed by voice acclamation. Alderman Dale Mayr was elected as Chairman. 
   
Chairman Mayr requested to take item number four, DNR nuisance permit, out of order. Committee members 
agreed to discuss item four next on the agenda. 
 
DNR nuisance permit 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated earlier in the year, staff did inquire about the feasibility of obtaining a 
DNR nuisance permit and was informed by the Department of Natural Resources that a nuisance removal permit 
could be issued to the City of Mequon.  Mr. Thyes went on to say, the permit would allow the city or its agents  
to utilize bait when shooting or trapping coyotes and/or use cable restraint style traps at any time of the year. Mr. 
Thyes noted cable restraints are a legal trapping practice from November – February, the nuisance permit would 
allow year-round use of cable restraints style traps. Mr. Thyes noted the Department of Natural Resources did 
voice reservations about issuing such a permit, due to the fact; hunting and trapping of coyotes are both legal 
activities throughout the year. Mr. Thyes added, the Department of Natural Resources pointed out using a 
carcass or a form of meat bait could cause sanitary issues, attract other nuisance wildlife, inadvertently attract or 
harm other wildlife or domestic animals by luring them into the area in which the trap is set.  Mr. Thyes  noted it 
is important to know that the DNR has never issued a nuisance permit for coyotes , nor are there any other 
communities in the state that carry either a nuisance permit based program or a general culling program 
pertaining to coyotes.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated, currently the city’s police department oversees the deer culling 
nuisance permit which has been in place on and off since approximately 2005. Mr. Thyes noted there is 
significant amount of staff time that goes into scouting possible sites, working with the neighbors prior to any 
deer culling activities being carried out and then following up with complaints that come through.  Mr. Thyes 
stated the city’s  Public Works Department is also involved with the deer culling program as they spend time 
helping to bait the sites for the contractor, manage the distribution of the carcasses and oversee the reporting 
duties of how many and what type of deer have been harvested under that permit.  Mr. Thyes stated although the 
deer culling permit does not carry a cost, there are significant soft costs such as staff time and the 
responsibilities that go along with carrying out the nuisance permit process.  Mr. Thyes noted staff would 
anticipate a very similar type of situation in working with a nuisance permit pertaining to coyotes.  
 
 
 

 

 
Public Welfare Committee 
Meeting Minutes: May 12, 2015 
Minutes Approved:  June 23, 2015 



 
Mr. Thyes pointed out there have been several citizen hunting and resident groups that have continually 
pressured the city to move the deer culling contractors out of their area.  Mr. Thyes stated staff anticipates a 
similar type of situation could happen should a coyote nuisance permit be pursued.  Mr. Thyes added, a concern 
for the city to consider is it’s liability, pointing out under the deer culling contract, a contractor’s insurance 
provides a layer of protection to the city. Assistant City Administrator Thyes went on to say, based upon the 
many available options to address a nuisance animal such as; hiring a pest control specialist, using hazing 
methods and year-round gun and archery hunting, as well as, taking into account the significant amount of staff 
time and efforts that go into managing a DNR nuisance permit, staff would not be in favor of pursing a nuisance 
permit. 
 
Alderman Gierl stated a coyote culling permit is not a viable solution, and offered the suggestion of hiring a bow 
hunter, provided a permit is obtained from the city, to eliminate a problem coyote. Alderman Gierl went on to 
explain the process a bow hunter would use to remove a problem coyote. Alderman Gierl added he does like the 
idea of an informational newsletter about coyotes and suggested adding a list of available bow hunters to the 
newsletter.   
 
Alderman Strzelczyk stated he does not support a coyote culling program, but would support a baiting permit.  
Alderman Strzelczyk went on to say, using real bait would allow for specific areas to be targeted where coyote 
problems exist. Alderman Strzelczyk added he would support a motion to obtain a baiting permit with 
parameters to be determined at a later time. 
 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes informed the committee changes have been made to the response plan after 
the packet was sent out based upon feedback staff received.  Alderman Mayr noted a nuisance permit should be 
part of the response plan should the committee decide to move forward with the permit. 
 
City Administrator Jones added staff has worked to provide a response plan based on feedback after the packet 
was sent out, a plan that is manageable, efficient, responsive, sustainable, and ultimately is data driven.   Mr. 
Jones added, staff wants to ensure a draft response plan provides structure along with parameters to enable the 
city to support the program from a staff stand point and it is effective in addressing the identified needs. 
 
Motion:  Motion to obtain a baiting permit from the DNR, not to be implemented until parameters are in place, 
   permit to include transfer of rights to private residents if permissible (Strzelczyk/Gierl) 
Result:   Motion passed by voice acclamation. 
 
At this time an interested party in the audience asked for clarification on the motion made by the committee. 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes noted the meeting is not a public hearing, and went on to clarify the action 
of the committee by stating, staff has been directed to contact the DNR in regards to obtaining a permit, but will 
need to come back to the committee with research and data on how to implement a nuisance permit for baiting 
aimed towards nuisance animals, not a large spread culling program. 
    
City of Mequon coyote policy and response plan 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated before the committee for review is a formalized draft coyote response 
plan, noting it is the first formalized response plan in the State of Wisconsin pertaining to coyotes within a 
community. Mr. Thyes went on to say based on the feedback received from the committee at their last meeting; 
staff followed the Village of Riverside, Illinois coyote response plan as a model. Mr. Thyes noted the coyote 
response plan included in the committee’s packet for review provides a plan for strategic action to not only 
increase knowledge in general but also provide an understanding of the difference between normal coyote 
behavior and abnormal coyote behavior and what people can do to respond or coexist with coyotes within the 
community.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes reiterated, after receiving feedback on the coyote response plan, staff 
retooled Appendix A and reformatted the response table into a pilot program with various response levels as to; 
what triggers the actions, what triggers the different responses and actions, and who is responsible for carrying 
out the actions.  Mr. Thyes went on to review the response levels with the Committee. 
 
 
 
 

Public Welfare Committee 
Meeting Minutes: May 12, 2015 
Minutes Approved:  June 23, 2015 

2 



 
Alderman Mayr inquired whether residents within hot spot areas could be notified of problem coyotes. 
 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated the initial thought was for staff to report activity to the Public Welfare 
Committee and if deemed appropriate public notification could be an option to explore. 
 
Alderman Gierl mentioned he would like residents to have information available to them as to where to go for a 
solution should a coyote attack their dog. Mr. Thyes noted Response Level III would provide information if 
there is local concern and mentioned a list of volunteer trappers, provided by the Department of Natural 
Resources, is currently listed on the city’s website. 
 
Alderman Gierl stated his support for providing a list of bow hunters that residents could contact to remove 
problem coyotes.  City Administrator Jones stated by posting a list of bow hunters on the city website the city 
could be held liable should an incident happen as a result of removing a problem coyote.     
 
Alderman Strzelczyk stated he would like to see an actionable policy and program, and offered the following 
suggestions; change encounters to incidents, educating residents on hazing methods is key, less emphasis on 
gathering information, and suggested providing noise makers that can be used to deter a coyote if confronted.   
 
Chairman Mayr opened the meeting up to the audience at 6:31 PM for questions.  Residents shared their 
concerns on both sides of the issue. 
 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated the pilot coyote management program sets forth various levels of 
responses to specific actions based upon triggering events. Mr. Thyes concluded by stating, staff will look to 
bring back a revised pilot coyote management program and expanded response plan with additional information 
included in June based on feedback from the Committee. 
 
Discuss an alternative meeting day 
Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated staff is recommending the fourth Tuesday of the month as the new 
regular meeting date for the committee to consider.  Mr. Thyes added there are no meeting conflicts on the 
fourth Tuesday. 
 
The Committee agreed to leave the meeting on the second Tuesday and use the fourth Tuesday as an alternate 
meeting day for topics that require more time.   
 
Adjourn 
Action: Motion to adjourn the meeting (Strzelczyk/Gierl) 
Result: Motion passed by voice acclamation. Meeting adjourned at 6:50 PM 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Lina Prosser, Executive Assistant 
CITY OF MEQUON PUBLIC WELFARE COMMITTEE 

Public Welfare Committee 
Meeting Minutes: May 12, 2015 
Minutes Approved:  June 23, 2015 

3 


	Elect Committee Chairperson
	Chairman Mayr opened the floor for nominations of committee chair.
	Action:  Motion to nominate Alderman Dale Mayr as Committee Chair (Gierl/Strzelczyk)
	Result:   Motion passed by voice acclamation. Alderman Dale Mayr was elected as Chairman.
	Chairman Mayr requested to take item number four, DNR nuisance permit, out of order. Committee members agreed to discuss item four next on the agenda.
	DNR nuisance permit
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated earlier in the year, staff did inquire about the feasibility of obtaining a DNR nuisance permit and was informed by the Department of Natural Resources that a nuisance removal permit could be issued to the Cit...
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated, currently the city’s police department oversees the deer culling nuisance permit which has been in place on and off since approximately 2005. Mr. Thyes noted there is significant amount of staff time that goe...
	Mr. Thyes pointed out there have been several citizen hunting and resident groups that have continually pressured the city to move the deer culling contractors out of their area.  Mr. Thyes stated staff anticipates a similar type of situation could ha...
	Alderman Gierl stated a coyote culling permit is not a viable solution, and offered the suggestion of hiring a bow hunter, provided a permit is obtained from the city, to eliminate a problem coyote. Alderman Gierl went on to explain the process a bow ...
	Alderman Strzelczyk stated he does not support a coyote culling program, but would support a baiting permit.  Alderman Strzelczyk went on to say, using real bait would allow for specific areas to be targeted where coyote problems exist. Alderman Strze...
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes informed the committee changes have been made to the response plan after the packet was sent out based upon feedback staff received.  Alderman Mayr noted a nuisance permit should be part of the response plan should t...
	City Administrator Jones added staff has worked to provide a response plan based on feedback after the packet was sent out, a plan that is manageable, efficient, responsive, sustainable, and ultimately is data driven.   Mr. Jones added, staff wants to...
	Motion:  Motion to obtain a baiting permit from the DNR, not to be implemented until parameters are in place,    permit to include transfer of rights to private residents if permissible (Strzelczyk/Gierl)
	Result:   Motion passed by voice acclamation.
	At this time an interested party in the audience asked for clarification on the motion made by the committee. Assistant City Administrator Thyes noted the meeting is not a public hearing, and went on to clarify the action of the committee by stating, ...
	City of Mequon coyote policy and response plan
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated before the committee for review is a formalized draft coyote response plan, noting it is the first formalized response plan in the State of Wisconsin pertaining to coyotes within a community. Mr. Thyes went on...
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes reiterated, after receiving feedback on the coyote response plan, staff retooled Appendix A and reformatted the response table into a pilot program with various response levels as to; what triggers the actions, what ...
	Alderman Mayr inquired whether residents within hot spot areas could be notified of problem coyotes.
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated the initial thought was for staff to report activity to the Public Welfare Committee and if deemed appropriate public notification could be an option to explore.
	Alderman Gierl mentioned he would like residents to have information available to them as to where to go for a solution should a coyote attack their dog. Mr. Thyes noted Response Level III would provide information if there is local concern and mentio...
	Alderman Gierl stated his support for providing a list of bow hunters that residents could contact to remove problem coyotes.  City Administrator Jones stated by posting a list of bow hunters on the city website the city could be held liable should an...
	Alderman Strzelczyk stated he would like to see an actionable policy and program, and offered the following suggestions; change encounters to incidents, educating residents on hazing methods is key, less emphasis on gathering information, and suggeste...
	Chairman Mayr opened the meeting up to the audience at 6:31 PM for questions.  Residents shared their concerns on both sides of the issue.
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated the pilot coyote management program sets forth various levels of responses to specific actions based upon triggering events. Mr. Thyes concluded by stating, staff will look to bring back a revised pilot coyote...
	Discuss an alternative meeting day
	Assistant City Administrator Thyes stated staff is recommending the fourth Tuesday of the month as the new regular meeting date for the committee to consider.  Mr. Thyes added there are no meeting conflicts on the fourth Tuesday.
	The Committee agreed to leave the meeting on the second Tuesday and use the fourth Tuesday as an alternate meeting day for topics that require more time.
	Adjourn
	Action: Motion to adjourn the meeting (Strzelczyk/Gierl)
	Result: Motion passed by voice acclamation. Meeting adjourned at 6:50 PM

